





5. Ravenna Auction’s “shippers™ or “consignors” were all timely paid; no checks
bounced. Ravenna Auction borrowed money when needed to make up for buyers who paid a
week later at the next sale, or even later than that, or not at all. Ravenna Auction borrowed
regularly from its principal owner, La Verne Lettinga,* who placed certificates of deposit
into the trust account to shore it up.
6. Nevertheless, the Packers and Stockyards audit in 2012 showed that Ravenna
Auction was not in compliance with Packers and Stockyards’ strict requirements for the trust
account on either date that was checked, May 31, 2012, or June 29, 2012, See Paragraph I1I
of the Complaint.
7. Ravenna Auction maintained a $97,000.00 bond in 2012 (Tr. 63-64, CX 31). The
bond is insurance and in no way substitutes for the requirement to keep the trust account “in
balance”. Tr. 383-84.
3. Further, Ravenna Auction, in 2012, failed to handle repayment of a loan properly.
See Paragraph V of the Complaint. The loan, $75,000.00, came from Mr-
_ who loaned Ravenna Auction $75,000.00 in late June 2012 when Randy
Lettinga called and asked him to. Tr. 476-84.
9. Mr. -did nothing wrong, made no money on the transaction, and was merely
helping the Lettinga family, who own and operate Ravenna Auction, and who had been his

friends for 40 years. Tr. 484.

2. In2012 La Verne Lettinga owned 99.5% of Ravenna Auction, L.L.C.; one of his sons Randy C.
Lettinga owned 0.5%. CX 33.



10. As the means of repayment Ravenna Auction gave Mr.-ﬁve $15,000.00
checks, on or about the same day he loaned the $75,000.00. Mr. -was to cash the
checks during the following 30 days (the first check in a couple of days; the remaining
checks, one a week). Tr. 478. Mr.-lid as requested; thereby, Mr.-was tully
repaid, promptly, with no interest. No collateral was required; paperwork was minimal.
11. Ravenna Auction should have given Mr.‘cnﬂl account checks, but instead,
wrongly, wrote those five $15,000.00 checks on the trust account, “Custodial Account -
Shippers Proceeds”. This management-and-bookkeeping-blunder created a misuse of the
frust account.
12.  Evenif all the borrowed money had gone into the trust account, the repayment to Mr,
-should have come out of the general account. Even if the only account that carried a
balance exceeding $15,000.00 consistently, week after week, was the trust account, the
repayment to Mr. -should still have come out of the general account.
13.  Worse, Ravenna Auction created fictitious paperwork to show the repayment to Mr.
-out of the trust account as if Mr. -wcre being paid for cattle, which he was not.
CX 51, p. 2.
14.  Learning how to apply 9 C.F.R, § 201.42 is difficult. First, the legal concepts are
peculiar. Second, a market agency such as Ravenna Auction is expected to come up with its
own funds, even where there is no danger of its checks bouncing, to make up the shortfall
caused by livestock buyers who pay late or not at all.

Here is the regulation:















Department of Agriculture (“Packers and Stockyards™ or “Complainant™). Packers and
Stockyards is represented by Ciarra A. Toomey, Esq. and Elizabeth Kruman, Esq., with the
Office of the General Counsel, United States Department of Agriculture, Washington D.C.
21.  There are 3 Respondents: Ravenna Auction, L..L..C., a limited liability company in
Ravenna, Michigan; and Paul Lettinga and Randy Lettinga, who are brothers, who work at
Ravenna Auction, L L.C. (jointly, “the Ravenna Auction Respondents™).

Procedural History
22, Two Complaints were consolidated for Hearing; this Decision addresses one of those
fwo Complaints. Ravenna Auction is alleged (a) to have failed to maintain and properly use
its custodial account (trust account); and (b) to have failed to comply with a Consent
Decision and Order entered in /n re Ravenna Auction, L.L.C., and La Verne Lettinga, P&S
Docket No. D-10-0459; and (c) to have engaged in unfair and deceptive practices regarding
fictitious paperwork showing a sale of livestock when there was none (the repayment to Mr.
-as if Mr, -ve.re being paid for cattle). The Complaint, filed on May 13, 2014,
cites sections 307, 312(a), and 401 of the Packers and Stockyards Act, 1921, as amended and
supplemented (7 U.S.C, § 208, 7 U.S.C. § 213(a), and 7 U.S.C. §221); and section 201.42 of
the regulations (9 C.F.R. § 201.42).
23.  The first 3 days of the Hearing were October 8§ - 10, 2014, in Grand Rapids,
Michigan; and the last day of the Hearing was January 14, 2015, by audio-visual
telecommunication among 3 locations (Washington, D.C.; Grand Rapids, Michigan; and St.

Joseph, Missouri).
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Ms. Toomey:  And why is that?
Mr. Fast:  That's per the, I guess, per the regulation, after seven days it's no longer a
proceed receivable.
Ms. Toomey: And if there is a sale at 5:00 on the seventh day and you know that the
proceeds are going to be coming in from buyers from the previous weeks sale, what should
the market do in that situation, knowing that they won't have the proceeds in hand by the
time the bank closes that day?
Mr. Fast:  They should reimburse the custodial account for that amount. If the receivables
are collected later on, I mean, if the account hadn't been reimbursed, | mean, they, potentially
could be a deposit in transit if they're not received at that point, they should make a deposit
themselves and transfer the money as well.
Ms. Toomey:  And you would count that in your analysis as a deposit in transit if it was
listed on a deposit slip, but not yet deposited?
Mr. Fast:  Correct.
Ms. Toomey: And so it would be considered a debit still?
Mr. Fast:  Yes.
Tr. 377-79.
46.  Regarding Ravenna Auction’s failure, in 2012, to handle repayment of the

$75,000.00 loan from Mr. _properly, I incorporate herein

paragraphs 8 through 13, See also Tr. 412-16, Ttr. 477, Ir. 484, CX 51, p. 2.
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purposes of balancing the trust account, see 9 C.F.R. § 201.42) maintain the trust account in
an amount equal to or greater than the obligations to the consignors, which Ravenna Auction
failed to do on May 31, 2012, and on June 29, 2012,

51.  Ravenna Auction may not have bank account charges deducted from the trust
account. The bank can be expected to cooperate by applying those charges to the general
account.

52.  Ravenna Auction may transfer out of the trust account into the general account its
commissions and other compensation for its services, but only if so doing so will not cause
the trust account to be lower than the obligations to the consignors.

53. Ravenna Auction may transfer out of the trust account into the general account
loaned money, such as $60,000.00 of the -$75,000.00 loan, but only if so doing
will not cause the trust account to be lower than the obligations to the consignors.

54.  Rayvenna Auction may remove from the trust account loaned money, such as pledged
certificates of deposit, but only if so doing will not cause the trust account to be lower than
the obligations to the consignors.

55.  See the Order below for the remedies for each of the Rayenna Auction Respondents
which I conclude are commensurate with the violations and adequate to deter future
violations. See also Tr. 436-440 and Tr. 516. Ravenna Auction clearly is important to the
community it serves; a lengthy suspension of Ravenna Auction would likely harm the

community it serves,












Copies of this First Amended Decision and Order shall be served by the Hearing
Clerk upon each of the parties (to Respondents’ counsel by email and certified mail; to
Packers and Stockyards® counsel by email to each attorney with the Office of the General
Counsel). The Hearing Clerk shall in addition send a courtesy copy by ordinary mail to

counsel for Lake Odessa Livestock Auction, Inc. and to Mr. La Verne P. (“Verne”) Lettinga.

Done at Washington, D.C.
this 9" day of November 2016

Jill S. Clifton
Administrative Law Judge

Hearing Clerk’s Office
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Stop 9203 South Building Room 1031
1400 Independence Ave SW
Washington, DC 20250-9203
202-720-4443
FAX 202-720-9776
OALJHearingClerks@ocio.usda.goy




























At the end of the one-year period, the above suspension as to the Respondents

shall be extinguished.

In accordance with section 812(b) of the Act (7 U.S.C. § 213(b)), Respondents are
assessed jointly and severally a civil penalty in the total amount of thirty-five
thousand dollars ($35,000), ten thousand of which will be held in abeyance for one
year pending Regpondents’ compliance with the provisions of the Understanding
Regarding Civil Penalty Payment Terms entered into by the parties.

This Order shall have the same force and effect as if entered after full hearing.
The provisions of this Order shall become final and effective upon issuance (7 C.I.R.
§ 1,138).

Copies of this decision shall be served upon the parties.

Done at Washington, D.C,

this #¢ 1day of A ’!’_‘,z‘ﬁl

Administrative Law Jud

Ggrard D, Eftink | Cia;.‘_ra A. Toomey
Attorney for Respondent Attorney for Complainant

CX-5
Page 7 of 7







LaVeme Lettinga, Prosident
Lake QOdessa Livestock Auction, Ing,
Page 2

A review of consignor invoices and supporting documents disclosed that you are not retaining
scale tickets beyond 90 days, in violation of Regulation 203 4(b) which specifies a period of two
(2) years for record retention,

You do not uniformly apply tariff charges to consignors, a violation of regulation 203.17(d).

The practice you employ of offsetting consignors” purchases to their sales does not allow for fully
disclosure of the true nature of the transaction, and is a violation of Section 401 of the Act (7
U.S.C. 221) which specifies “Every packer, any swine contractor, and any live poultry dealer,
stockyard owner, market agency, and dealer shall keep snch accounts, records, and memoranda as
fully and correctly disclose all transactions involved in his business, ,.."”

You indicated that you now understand the requirements of the Act and would begin
implementing corrective actions,

Please advise this office, in writing, within (30) days of the date of this letter as to the actions
taken to correct this sitnation. If the violations described above are not corrected, formal
disciplinary action may be initialed and you may be subject to a civil penalty and/or
suspension,

If you have ety questions, please contact George Pulwicz by telephone at (515) 323-2577.

Sincerely,

Regional Director

gp:kep

¢ ¢ Treat Every Customer and Employee Fairly, Equitably, and with Dignity and Respeci<* ¢+
Visitus on the Infernel at www.gipsa.usdagoy Call the GIPSA Hotline al 1-800-998-3447

CX-55, Page 2 of 4







USD A U.S, Department of Agriculture
] Grain Inspection, Packers and Stockyards Adminlstration

— Paclers and Stockyards Program

The August 31, 2007, accounts receivable records prepared by the market do ngt filly and
corrcelly disclosed all the transactions involved in the business. Mr, Lettinga stated that the
accounts receivable records were understated and not correet, Also, bank deposit slips were not
faund for some of the collection of proceeds receivable. Failure lo maintain complete and correct
accounts, records, and memoranda is a violation of section 401 of the Act.

Sectlon 2 ~ Notfee of Violatlon

Thisserves as official notice that your business practices are In violation of the sections of the Packers and
Stackyards Act and/or regulatlons Identifled above, You musl correct your business practices In order (o be
considered in camplianee, Ifyou do-wot correct your business practlees, continued violatlons may result in an
administrative complaint filed agalnst you charglug you with violatlons of the Act, If, after the filing of the
admmistratlve complaint and an opportunity for an administrailve hearing, yon are found te have operated
unlawfully, you will be subject to nppropriatesanctlons, Sanelions may inelude an Order to eease and desist
from the unlawful conduet, eivil penaltics of up 10 $11,000.00 por vlolstlon or suspension of your reglstmtlon,
Irapplleable,

Date: [u‘l '07

GIPSA Cfficlal Slgnature;

Mldwestern Reglonal Office
210 Walnut Streef, Room 317
Des Molnes, 1A 50309
(515) 323-2579
FAX (515) 323-2590
wyyw.glpsausda.gov
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